SEL TEXTILES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2019
{Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
ASSETS
{1) Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 64,820.36 68,278.43
(b} Capital Work in Progress 4 37,634.71 37,634.71
(c} Investment Property 4 - 26536
Q) GRS — — T T T e e o - e R
{e) Other Intangible Assets 4 - -
(f} Intangible Assets under Development - -
(g} Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants - -
(h) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 8,103.22 8,103.22
(it} Trade Receivable - -
{lii} Loans - -
(iv) Others - -
(i) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - -
{j} Other Non-Current Assets 6 737.86 579.85
1,11,296.16 1,14,861.62
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 1,373.59 4,585.42
{b) Financial Assets
{1} Current Investments - -
(i) Trade Receivables 8 1,638.66 7,591.71
{iiit) Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 33.25 105.50
(iv) Bank Balances other than {ji) above - -
{v) Loans - -
{vi) Others 10 6,331.28 6,331.28
(¢} Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 430.2% 210,54
(d) Other Current Assets 12 1,149.14 3,343.43
10,956.14 22,167.88
TOTAL ASSETS 1,22,252.30 1,37,029,50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity e
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 12,705.72 12,705.72
{b) Other Equity 14 {68,732.72) {55,838.89
{56,027.00) {43,133.17
LIABILITIES
{1} Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liahilities
{1} Borrowings 15 61,437.62 77,361.87
{ii) Trade Payables - -
{iii) Other Financial Liabilites - -
(b} Provisions 16 37.35 106.71
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net} - -
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
61,474.98 77,468.59
{2) Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 17 36,195.01 36,708.28
(i) Trade Payables 18
{1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and - -
{2} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12,156.55 12,537.72
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 68,267.73 53,295.22
{b} Other Current Liabilities 20 67.85 92.64
(c) Provistons 21 117.18 60.23
{d} Current Tax Liabilities{Net) - -
1,16,804.32 1,02,694.08
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,22,252.30 1,37,029.50

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Malhotra Manik & Associate

Prop.
M.No.: 094604

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 22.05.2019

For and on the behalf of Board of

SEL Textiles Limited

Ve

R 5 Saluja)
Managing Director
DIN: 01145051

avneet Gupta)
Drirector
DIN: 02122420




SEL TEXTILES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

{Rs. In Lakhs}
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. CURRENT YEAR | PREVIQUS YEAR
I. Revenue From Operations 22 14,852.39 31,549.80
1. Other Income 23 1,427.96 64651
1. Total Income (141} 16,280.35 32,196.30
| . Bipmmes — T . - R [ e e -
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 4,367.98 12,503.92
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25217 3,013.08
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 25 1,411.23 8,037.66
Employee Benefits Expense 26 3,408.97 2,73044
Finance Cost 27 308.17 276.50
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 23 3,733.00 3,708.29
Other Expense 29 8,623.04 7,875.00
Tatal Expenses {IV) 22,105.57 38,144.89
V. Profit/{Loss) Before Exceptional items And Tax (I-IV} {5,825.22) {5,948.58)
VI, Exceptional ltems 30 6,983.62 36,492.10
VII. Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) {12,808.84) {42,440.68)
Vill. Tax Expense
a) Deferred Tax - 15,845.63
b) MAT Credit Entitlement - 920.99
IX. Profit/{Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations {Vil-vill) (12,808.84) {59,207.30)
X. Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations - -
XI. Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
XII. Profit/{Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (After Tax) {X-X1} - -
Xlit. Profit/{Loss) for the period (IX+Xil) {12,808.84) {59,207.30)
XiV. Other Comprehensive income
A (i) Iterns that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 64.81 116.63
B {i} ltems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss (149.80) (603.69)
‘Total Other Comprehensive Income(net of taxes} (84.98) (487.05)
XV. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (XIII+XIV) {12,893.82) {59,694.35)
XVI. Earning per Equity Share {for Continuing Operations] (Rs.} 33
1) Basic {10.08) (46.60)
2) Diluted (10.08} {46.60)
XVIL. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued Operations} {Rs.}
1} Basic - -
2) Diluted - -
XVIil. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued & Continuing Operations) (Rs.) 23
1) Basic (10.08) (46.60)
2) Diluted {10.08) {46.60)
See accompa.nylng notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Malhotra Manik 8 Associates

For and on the behalf of Board of
SEL Textiles Limited

L

2\

{CA.Manik
Prop.
M.No.: 094604

{R 5 Saluja)
Managing Director
DIN: 03145051

avneet Gupta)
Director
DIN: 02122420

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 22.05.2019
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SEL TEXTILES UMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2019

e m e et et et et mmt e m o+ et amen o e e e - e e ¢ mt - — — e woe — — ——[Rs,In Lakhs} - — -
. Particulars Details 31.03.2019 Detaills 31.03.2018
. A |Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Taxes & Extraordinary Items {12,808.84) {42,440.68)
Adjustments for Non Cash ltems:
-Depreciation 3,733.00 3,708.29
-Provision for Doubtful Debts 6,996.24 20,858.28
-Reduction in Value of Inventories - 6,891.35
-Allowances for Loans & Advances {12.62) 8,742.47
-Interest Pald 292.50 189.68
-Interest Received {28.42) {52.65)
-Autuarial Gain on Defined Plan 64.81 116.63
-(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 11,045.52 9.37 40,453.41
: Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:
& -Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 14,623.51 14,433.84
= -({Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables {1,043.19) {5,970.27)
’ ~{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets 2,194.29 2,097.78
- -{Increase)/ Decrease in Current Assets Tax (Net) (219.68) {113.59)
: ~(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets - 705.84
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 3,211.83 7,222.38
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Non Current A {145.35) 266.50
-Increase/(Decrease)in Non Current Provisions {69.36) 75.20
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 18,552.05 18,721.68
Cash Generation from Operations 16,788.73 16,744.41
-Taxes Paid - 920.99
Net Cash from Operating Activities 16,788.73 15,823.42
H B |Cash Flows from Investing Actlvities .
. -Purchase of Plant, Property & Equipments (9.57) {69.98)
- ~(Increase)/Decrease in Capital Work in Process - 22,50
1 -Sale of Plant, Property & Equipments - 31.00
i -Interest Received 28.42 52.65
i Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 18.84 36.17
g C |Cash Flows from Financing Activities
-Proceeds/{Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings {16,074.05) {14,761.32)
-Proceeds/{Repayment} of Current Financial Borrowing {513.27} {1,122.25)
-Interest Paid {292.50) {189.68)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities {16,879.82} (16,073.26})
Net Increasef{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent {72.25) {213.66)
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 105.50 319.17
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 33,25 105.50

Subject to our Separate Report of Even Date
For Malhotra Manik & Assoclates -

FRN: 015848N
M.No.:094604

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 22.05.2019

Managing Director

For and on the behalf of Board of
SEL Textiles Limited

avneet Gupta)
Director
DIN: 02122420

J]

DIN: 01145051
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INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT} NOTE NO.-5
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
: 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Investment n Equity Instruments {Unquoted)
Subsidaries (At Cost)
. i} 4,041,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of Silverfine Corporation Limited 4,041.00 4,041.00
(b) Investment In Preference Shares (Unquoted) {At Cost)
i) 3,692,930 9% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of 4,062.22 4,062.22
Rhythm Textiles & Apparel Park Limited
TOTAL 8,103.22 8,103.22
" Aggregate Valie of UnQuiStéd livestients™ —— 777 T T T T e — —§,103:22 - — — §103:22 — - -
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS NQTE NO. - 6
PARTICULARS AS AT . AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
a) Security Deposits 737.96 579.89
b) Capital Advances 8,113.73 8,130.42
8,851.59 8,710.31
Less:impalrment for Doubtful Loans & Advances (Expected Credit Loss Allowance}# 8,113.73 8,130.42
’ TOTAL 737.86 579.89
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.20138
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,130.42 -
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provisions 16.69 -
Add: Provision made during the year - 8,130.42
Balance at the end of the year 8,113.73 8,130.42
INVENTORIES NOTENO.-7
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{Valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value, whichever is lower)
{a) Raw Materials 213.99 2,012.06
{b) Work in Progress - 95.71
{c) Finished Goods 1,017.73 1,565.45
(d) Stock in Trade 51,25 819.06
{e) Stores & Spares 90.62 93.15
TOTAL 1,373.59 4,585.42
*[nventories pledged as security to Working Capital Lenders
TRADE RECEIVABLES NOTE NO.-8
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03,2019 31.03.2018
a) Trade Recelvables considered good-Secured - -
b} Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured 1,638.66 7,591.71
¢} Trade Recelvables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and - -
d} Trade Receivables-credit impaired : 27,854.52 20,858.28
29,493.18 28,449.95
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 27,854.52 20,858.28
TOTAL 1,638.66 7,591.71
*Trade Recelvables pledged as security to Working Capital Lenders
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,858.28 -
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provisions - -
Add: Provision made during the year 6,996.24 20,858.28
Balance at the end of the year 27,854.52 20,858.28
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE NO.-9
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Cash in Hand 18.93 56.43
{b) Balances With Scheduled Banks
i) In Current Accounts 14.33 49.07
TOTAL 33.25 105.50




OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS {CURRENT)

NOTE NO. - 10
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03,2019 31.03.2018
{Unsecured, considered good}
i} Interest Subsidy Recelvable 6,331.28 6,331.28
TOTAL 6,331.28 5,331.28
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) NOTE NO.-11
[ PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
T e - T -- -~ |— 31.03.2019~ -} -~ 31.03:2018- -
i} Prepald Taxes 430.21 210.54
TOTAL 430,21 210.54
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS -NOQTE NO, - 12
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{Unsecured, considered good)
1) Advances to Suppliers 668.90 696.56
il) Statutory Dues & Taxes 1,067.65 3,231.80
i} Others 28.71 27.12
: - 1,765.26 3,955.48
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans & Advances {Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 616.12 612.05
TOTAL 1,149.14 3,343.43
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 612.05 -
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provisions - -
Add: Provision made during the year 4.07 612.05
Balance at the end of the year ! 616.12 612.05
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL NOTE NO. -13
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Authorised .
150,000,000 Equity Shares 15,000.04 15,000.00
(b} Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
127,057,200 Equity Shares Fully Pald Up 12,705.72 12,705.72
12,705.72 12,705.72
{c) Par Value per Share
Par Value per Share is Rs. 10/-
{d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding
Particulars As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Equity Shares 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72 | 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72
Total 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72 | 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72
Add: Addition during the year
Fquity Shares - - - -
Total - - - -
Less: Deduction during the year
Equity Shares - - - -
Total - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Equity Shares 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72 | 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72
Total 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72 | 12,70,57,200.00 12,705.72
{e) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares .
SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd., the Holding Company 100%

{f} Terms/rights, preference, restrictions attached to shares.
The company has only orie class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share Is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the realised value of the assets of the
company, remaining after payment of all preferential dues.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.




OTHER EQUITY NOTE NO. -14
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Securities Prernium
Opening Balance 38,329.77 38,329.77
Add: Addition during the year - -
38,329.77 38,329.77
Less: Deduction during the year - -
’ 38,329.77 38,329.77
] .16} Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance oo o - - —1,30368 [ 479073 -~ - -
——|-Add:Addition-during the-year. 64.81 116.63 )
1,368.49 1,907.37
Less: Deduction during the year 149.80 603.69
1,218.70 1,303.58
(c) Surplus .
Opening Balance (95,472.34) {36,265.05)
Add: Addition during the year (12,308.84) {59,207.30)
{1,08,281.18) {95,472.34)
Less: Deduction during the year - -
(1,08,281.18) [95,472.34)
TOTAL {68,732.72) {55,838.89)
BORROWINGS {NON CURRENT) NOTE NO.-15
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2013
{a) Secured Loans
1} Term Loans
- From Banks 58,222.59 75,296.64
{b} Unsecured Loans
i) Lean from Others 10.00 10.00
ii} Loan from Director (At Amortised Cost} 2,205.03 2,055.24 _
{Interest free loans repayable in 2023-24)
TOTAL 61,437.62 77,361.87



Terms and conditions of secured loans taken from banks and status of contulning default as at year end

. Funded Interest| Working Capital | Funded Interest
Rupee Term |Rupee Term Loan Rupee Term
Type of Loans Loan | {RTL) Il (RTL-1) Term Loan | Term Loan Term Lloan i | Loan It {PL-111)
{FITL-I) (WCTL) (WCTL FITL-I1)
Sanctioned Amount 43,246.00 60,000.00 16,874.00 10,625.00 2,152.62 7,500.00
Balance as on 31.03.2019 41,700.24 5861049 | 804296 . 1096561 |- - 2,017:38-|-———-700.76 | -~
“|Rate of Interest 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 1065% |  11.15%
Repayment Type ————|—Manthly Monthly __Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Monthly
Repayment during the year
'|ending '
31/03/2020 5,405.,75 9,064.76 - 1,5983.75 - 102,79
31/03/2021 5,621.98 5,000.00 - 1,859.38 - 102.79
31/03/2022 5,621.98 10,500.00 - 1,860.63 - 119.92
31/03/2023 6,054.44 10,500.00 - 2,656.25 - 119.92
31/03/2024 1,330.63 823.51 - 366.95 - 100.16
Overdue Principle Amount 15,121.73 14,820.59 7,814.23 1,928.77 1,769.66 139.38
Overdue Interest Amount 2,543.73 3,490.70 769.18 699.89 254.39 16.79
Overdue Since June 2015 August 2015 April 2015 Aug 2015 October 2015 | February 2016

Detalls of security for term loans



PROVISIONS {NON CURRENT) NOTE NO. - 16
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.201%
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits 3735 106.71
TOTAL 37.35 106.71
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS NOTE NO. - 17
- .pARTICULARS...._.__.__ e mm e e — R — N, - 'AS'AT"_"_" —— '—'AS'AT"—' =
L 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Secured Loans
i) Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks 36,195.01 36,708.28
TOTAL 36,195.01 36,708.28

Details of security for working capital borrowings

Working Capital Loans are secured by way of first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the company both
present and future including Stock in Trade and receivables etc. with other consortium members and further secured by second pari passu
charge on the entire fixed assets of the company present and future. The working capital Ioans are further secured by way of corporate

guarantee of the promoter company.

Terms of repayment of loans repayable on demand
From banks are repayable on demand and carries Interest @ 10.65% p.a.

TRADE PAYABLES NOTE NO. - 18
PARTICULARS AS AT - ASAT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Trade Payables 12,156.55 12,537.72
TOTAL 12,156.55 12,537.72

Based on and to the extent of information received from the Suppliers regarding their status under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as

identified by Management, the relevant particulars as at 31st March, 2019 are Nil.

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

{i} Principal amount and the Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting
ear - -

}Iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; ’ - -

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has been

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Mediumn Enterprises Development Act, 2006; - -
{iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

{v} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uatil such

date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of;

disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,

Development Act, 2006. - -
OTHER FINANCIAL UABILITIES {CURRENT) NOTE NO. - 19
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
i) Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 57,761.40 42,293.03
i} Interest Accrued and due on borrowings 777471 7,774.71

iif) Employees Benefits 243.73 458,70
iv} Payable to Vendors-Non Trade 977.46 1,421.10
v} Others Payable 1,510.42 1,347.67

TOTAL 68,267.73 53,295.22
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES NOTE NO.-20
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
i} Statutory Dues & Taxes 54.07 64.30
ii) Advances from Customers 13.78 28.33
TOTAL 67.85 92.64




PROVISIONS {CURRENT) _NOTE NO. - 21
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03,2018
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits 11718 60.23
TOTAL 117.18 60.23
REVENUE FROM OPERATION NOTE NO. - 22
mm P PARTICULARS —— o e e e e e —--———| -CURRENT-YEAR- |- PREVIOUS YEAR -~ ———---— —=-——
Sale of Products
Finished Goods 993.67 21,478.62
Traded Goods 1,006.25 2,219.24
Raw Material 1,637.35 -
Other Cperating Income -
Sale of Services 11,190.01 6,258.28
Other 25.11 1,553.66
TOTAL 14,85239 31,545.80
OTHER INCOME NOTE NO. - 23
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIQUS YEAR
Export Incentives - 232.40
Interest (Gross} 2842 52,65
Cther Income 3.59 359,87
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 1,387.51 -
Rental Income 8.45 1.59
TOTAL 1,427.96 646.51
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED NOTE NO. - 24
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock 1,964.46 5,050.57
Add: Purchases (net) 1,485.96 12,811.86
3,450.43 17,862.43
Less: Inventories Valued at Net Realisable Value - 3,955.05
Less: Closing Stock 150.73 1,964.46
Cost of raw material consumed during the year (A) 3,299.70 11,942.92
Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 47.60 53.11
Add: Purchases {net) 1,083.94 555,49
1,131.54 608.60
Less: Closing Stock 63.26 47.60
Cost of packing material consumed during the year {B) 1,068.28 561.00
. TOTAL {A+B) 4,367.98 12,503.92
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GQODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE NOTE NO. - 25
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Opening Stocks
Work in Process 95.71 6,895.51
Finished Goods 1,565.45 6,556.62
Stock in Trade 819.06 2.04
(A) 2,480.21 13,454.17
Closing Stocks
Work in Process - 95,71
Finished Goods 1,017.73 1,565.45
Stock in Trade 51.25 819.06
(B) 1,068.98 2,480.21
Inventories Valued at Net Realisable Value {C) - 2,936.29
Decrease/{Increase} in [nventoties {A-B-C) 1,411.23 8,037.66
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE NOTE NO. - 26
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIQUS YEAR
Wages,Salaries & Other Allowances he 3,153.39 2,530.01
Contribution to PF, ESI & Other Funds 22564 176.86
Staff & Labour Welfare 29.94 23,58
TOTAL 3,408.97 2,730.44



FINANCIAL COSTS NOTE NO. - 27
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
a} Bank Charges 16.67 86.82
b} Interast on
i) Working Capital Limits - 0.06
1i) Others 292.50 189.61
TOTAL 309.17 276.50
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES NOTE NO. - 28
PARTICULARS T - —|-CURRENT YEAR-|-PREVIOUS YEAR-——--——— = -—m
-Depreciation of Tangible Assets 3,733.00 3,708.29
TOTAL 3,733.00 3,708.29
OTHER EXPENSES NOTE NO. -2%
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Powel & Fuel 6,323.10 5,669.72
Consumables & Repair Maintenance 1,369.03 628.04
Printing & Stationery 1.85 0.92
Insurance 38.25 55.35
Fees & Taxes 36.06 27.34
Donation - 3.03
Legal & Professional Charges 68.94 63.26
'| Postage & Courier Charges 1.96 1.54
Telephone & Fax Expenses 4.00 4,20
Statutery Auditors' Remuneration
-Audit Fee 1.50 1.80
-Tax Audit Fee 0.50 0.75
-Reimbursement of Expenses 0.0 0.25
Cost Auditors' Remuneration
-Audit Fee 0.35 0.44
General Repair & Maintenance 6.28 5.82
Office Expenses 1711 8.16
Festival Expenses 9.30 6.19
Rent 11.37 B.62
Travelling & Conveyance 14798 10.8t
Service Tax Paid - 0.95
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments - 9.37
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 108.15
Building Repair & Maintanenace 477 13.48
vehicles Expenses ' 13.37 759
Export Incentlve Reversal For Earlier Years - 402.80
VAT Input Credit Reversal For Earlier Years 277.40 -
Commission 0.37 314.75
Rebate & Discount - 13.45
Clearing Forwarding & Freight Outward 285.49 508.22
TOTAL 8,623.04 7,875.00
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS . NOTE NQ. - 30
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Inventories Valued at Net Realisable Value - 6,891.35
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables 6,996.24 20,858.28
Allowance/Impairment for Doubtful Loans & Advances {12.62) 8,742.47
TOTAL 6,983.62 36,492.10
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2.

©  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

SEL Textiles Limited {the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated in India under the
provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, processing & trading
of yarns, fabrics, readymade garments and towels. The registered office of the company is located at 274, G.T. Road, -
Dhandari Khurd, Ludhiana, Punjab.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS), under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR"} and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting
policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions
in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind
AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of
initially applying this standard is recognized at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative
information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — i.e. the comparative information continues to be
reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer note 2(3} — Significant accounting policies — Revenue recognition in the
Annual report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18,
The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company s insignificant.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies performance obligation by transferring
promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of time or over a period of
time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognized as per the terms of relevant contractual
agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the customer
obtains controls of the asset. :

Revenue from subsidiaries is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

Revenue also includes price variations based on the contractual agreements and excludes goods & services tax. Revenue
from export sales are recognized on shipment basis. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Lease income: Lease agreements where the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset substantially vest
with the lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals are recognised on straight-line basis as per the terms of

the agreements in the statement of profit and loss.
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Interest income: Income from interest is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
f rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Export Incentives: Revenue in respect of the above benefits is recognized on post export basis.

Sale of Services: Revenue from the sale of services is recognized on the basis of the stage of completion. When the
contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are
eligible to be recovered.

j 2.4 Inventories
j inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower except for waste which is valued at net
realizable value. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is computed as under:
i) Inrespect of Raw Materials on FIFO basis.
ii) In respect of Work in process and Finished Goods, at weighted average cost of raw material plus conversion
cost & packing cost incurred to bring the goods to their present condition & location.
; fii) Inrespect of trading goods, on specific identification method.
iv) Inrespect of Consumable Stores on weighted average basis.

The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces,
; defective inventories are duly provided for and valued at net realizable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Net realizable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

: 2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions
; The functional currency of SEL Textiles Ltd. is an Indian rupee.

(i} Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction
except sales that are recorded at rate notified by the customs for invoice purposes. Such rate is notified in the
last week of every month and is adopted for recording export sales of next month.

(i) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on reporting the same at balance sheet date are recognized as income or
expenses in period in which they arise, except the exchange difference in case of fixed assets which have been
adjusted to the cost of fixed assets.

{iii} Foreign currency non monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost, re-stated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the year-end and the gain or loss, is accumulated in a foreign exchange fluctuation
reserve.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment & Capital Work in Progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
. accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property,
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the management. The present value of the expected cost
for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

: Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in
g Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the plant and equipment of spinning and terry towel units
where useful life has been technically assessed as 30 years. '

Praperty, plant and equipment which are added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-
rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. The company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. i
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such
date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and
equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in
net profit or net loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant
gains ot losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the
lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

2.7 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amorti:
over useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date they are available for use.

2.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of such assets,
! up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as expenditure in the
: year in which they are incurred. The capitalization of borrowing costs to be suspended during extended periods in
which active developments will be interrupted.

: 2.9 Employee Benefits

‘ (i) Shart term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences,
performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the
employee renders related service.

(i) Post-Employment Benefits:
{a) Defined Contribution Plans:
Provident Fund: Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution. The Company contribution to Provident
Fund is made in accordance with the provisions of the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision
Act, 1952 and is charged to the profit and loss account.

{b)} Defined Benefit Plans:

) Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan {'the Gratuity Plan') covering
& gligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and the tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined
by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each halance sheet date using the projected
unit credit method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains
and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset}) are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive
income. The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{iii) Long Term Employee Benefits: The liability for leave with wages is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation at
the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

2.10 Taxes
Tax Expense comprises of current income tax, deferred tax and MAT Credit Entitlement.

Current Tax: Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period after
considering tax allowances & exemptions.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent thatitisno
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax Credit: Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the
extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specific period. .

2,11 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if
the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and their value In use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an
! asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is
recoghised in the statement of profit and loss.

! 2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position include cash in hand and at bank and short-term
deposits with original maturity period of three months or less.

2.13 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i Provisions:
Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be determined by using a substantial degree of estimation, if:

(i) The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
(i) A probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle the obfigation; and
(iii) The amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
{i) a present obligation arising from a past event when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
. ecaonomic benefits.will be required to settle the obligationor _ o )
(i} a possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent Assets

Where an inflow if economic benefit is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets at the end of reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of thereof effect, measured using
the principles set out as per provisions.

2.14 Earnings per share
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.
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2,15 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfiliment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

i A leased asset is depreciated over the useful fife of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Assets acquired/given on leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
: lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged/earned to the statement of profit and loss on
i straight line basis.

2.16 Financial instruments:

(i} Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

: Financia! assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets
; measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
s - Financial assets at fair value
: "- Financial assets at amortised cost
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit
and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
; other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

: -. Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractua! cash flows {rather than to sell the Instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value
changes).

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
: income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

- Business model test; The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency {sometimes referred to as an “accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and Josses on
them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

T

L ibsidiaries: The Coimpany has accouhtar




SEL TEXTILES LIMITED 2018-19

Ofﬁér ihvéstmenfs
- Quoted Investments: All other quoted investments are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income in the balance sheet.

-Unquoted Investments: All other unquoted investments are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income in the balance sheet, except thase investments which the company has chosen to measure at cost as per
ind AS 109 Financial Instruments Paragraph B5.2.3.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at
fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
-The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation {o pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through" arrangement and either;

{a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement. It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
g associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retzained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
i original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

{ii) Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

i
i
1
i
i

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings; After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.17 Fair value measurement

____Thao farmmnany o g nancialinetoiimeon - fair a aarh b nee shaat date Eai e ictho prico th quild
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" measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assetor
! transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
1 benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
t asset in its highest and best use.

: The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

- Level 1--Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly ohservable

- Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable '

For assets and fiabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization {based an the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.18 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
current when it is:

: s Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reparting period; or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. '

All other-assets are-classified as-non-current.

A liability is current when:

* It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

¢ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle: Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed
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2.19 Exceptional ltems: S e
Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of
the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company, such income

| or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial
‘ statements.

| 2.20 Government Grants & Subsidies

’ Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that

[ {i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and

(if) the grant/subsidy will be received.

! When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of
profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to
compensate.

! 2.21 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial Information is available
that Is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing
performance. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Managing Director & CEO.

2.22 Cash flow statement _
The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) —7 “Statement of Cash
flows” using the indirect method for operating activities.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires management to make certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company in the financial statements are as set out above. The
] application of a number of these policies requires the Company to use a variety of estimation techniques and apply
judgement to best reflect the substance of underlying transactions.

The Company has determined that a number of its accounting policies can be considered significant, in terms of the
management judgement that has been required to determine the various assumptions underpinning their application
in the financial statements presented which, under different conditions, could lead to material differences in these
statements. The actual results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by the management
and will seldom equal the estimated results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Assets: The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can be
utilized is based on the Company’s forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses, and
specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in India in which the Company operates are also
carefully taken into consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a deferred tax
asset, especially when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually recognised in full. The
recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed
individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Contingences and commitments: in the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and

other claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystailizing or are very

difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
ovided for in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Liability for sales return: In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed
criteria for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular, whether the
Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods. Following the
detailed quantification of the Company’s liability towards sales return, the management is satisfied that significant risk
and rewards have been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in
conjunction with the recognition of an appropriate liability for sales return. Accruals for estimated product returns,
; which are based on historical experience of actual sales returns and adjustment on account of current market scenario
E is considered by Company to be reliable estimate of future sales returns.

Allowance/Impairment for uncollected accounts receivable and other advances: Trade receivables and other
advances do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate

allowance/impairment which is made on ECL, and the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the
financial assets.

i
i
i
{
i
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31. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

A. There is contingent liabilities in respect of the following items: No outflow is expected in view of the past history
relating to these items:

{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 |
{i) iIncome Tax (net of deposit under protest)* 702.41 366.99
(ii) Export Incentives lability in respect of allowance for foreign debtors** 1,066.19 1,066.12

*includes demand from tax authorities for various matters. In respect of the assessment proceedings for the various
assessment years, the Department has demand including penalties by making some frivolous additions to the total
income of the Company. The Company had deposited Rs 65 Lakhs with the tax authorities and filed the appeals against
these additions before appropriate authorities and the Company is hopeful that it will get relief in appeal. Considering
the facts of the matters, no provision is considered necessary by management.

**subject to further interest and penalty.

B. Capital Commitments (Rs. in fakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital

Account and not provided for{net of advances) 6,873.72 6,873.72

Further the company has made impairment for capital advances amounting Rs. 8,113.73 lakhs, against advances
outstanding since long time also the purchase order placed are more than one year and escalation costs, if any, in these
purchase orders shall be in addition to figures reported above.

* 32. The related party disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS)-24 “Related Party” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below:

Sr. No. Name of the related party Relationship
| 1 M/s. SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd. Holding Company
1‘ 2 M/s. Silverline Corporation Ltd.* Subsidiary Company
3 Mr. R.S. Saluja
Mr. Neeraj Saluja*
Mr. Dhiraj Saluja* Key Management personnel
| Mr. Navneet Gupta*
: Mr. V. K. Goyal*
4 M/s. Shiv Narayan Investments Pvt. Ltd.* Enterprises over which key management
M/s. SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd.* personnel and relatives of such personnel are able
M/s. Saluja International* to exercise significant influence
M/s. SE Exports*®
M/s Rythm Textiles & Apparels Park Ltd.
M/s SEL Renewable Power Limited*
5 Mrs. Sneh Lata Saluja*
Mrs. Ritu Saluja* Relatives of Key Management personnel
Mrs. Reema Saluja*

*No transactions have taken place during the year.

Related Parties Transactions: {Rs. in Lakhs}
Particular . Holding Company Key Management | Enterprises on which
Personnel Key Management
Personnel Exercise
Significant Control
| Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Purchase & Processing of Goods &
Consumables Stores* 0.04 1,644.73 - - - -
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| stores* .

Services Received 65.98 2.58 - - 13.34 2.84
Services Given 90.49 117.54 - - - -
Rent Paid 7.00 4.00 - - 4,37 4.37
Corporate Guarantee Received 201,324.00 | 201,324.00 - - - -
Managerial Remuneration - - 28.80 28.80 - -
Closing Balances of Related Parties

Debit/{Credit) (6,978.07) (7,281.66) (2,205.03) {2,055.24) - -

*excluding all taxes

33. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of Earnings per Share as disclosed in the statement of Profit & Loss has been in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 on “Earning per Share”.

Statement on calculation of Basic & Diluted EPS is as under:

34. The balances of Trade Receivables, Loan and Advances, Deposits and Trade Payables are subject to

confirmation/reconciliation and subsequent adjustments, if any. During the year, e-mails/letters have been sent to
: various parties with a request to confirm their balances as on 31" March, 2019 out of which few parties have
confirmed their balances direct to the auditors or to the company.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 127,057,200 127,057,200
Profit/(Loss) for the year (continuing operations) Lakhs (12,808.84) (59,207.30)
Weighted average earnings per shares {basic and diluted) Rs. {10.08) {46.60)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (Discontinued operations} Lakhs - -
Weighted average earnings per shares {(basic and diluted) | Rs. - -
{Discontinued operations)
; Profit/(Loss) for the year (total operations) Lakhs {(12,808.84) (59,207.30)
1 Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) Rs. {10.08) (46.60)
1
|

. There are no long term contracts, as on the date of balance sheet, including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses.
36. The Company followed an aggressive growth path and had considerably grown its balance sheet, including debt. Due to
the industry situation in general viz. slowdown and company specific issues such as growing debt, delayed realization of
debtors, working capital shortfall, delay in project completion and cash flow mismatch, which had adversely affected
the liquidity position of the company. The company was facing financial problems and finding difficulty in servicing its
debt obligation. Therefore, it approached the lenders for restructuring its debts under Corporate Debt Restructuring
(CDR) mechanism.
The Company’s proposals for restructuring of its debts was approved by Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell (“CDR
Cell”) vide Letter of Approval (LOA) dt. 23.09.2014. The cut-off date (COD} for implementation of COR was 30th
- September, 2013.. The Company executed Master Restructuring Agreement (MRA) with CDR Lenders on 30th
September, 2014, The details of the Restructuring package as approved by CDR cell were as under:-

a) Restructuring of repayment schedule for term loans under Technology Upgradation Funds Scheme (TUFS) and Non-
TUFS Term Loans, reduction in interest rates, additional facilities in the form of Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) &
Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL).

b) The promoters to bring contribution equivalent to 25% of the sacrifice amount of by lenders. Accordingly, promoters
have brought in an amount of Rs. 3,211.00 Lakhs as unsecured loan.

¢} Lenders with the approval of CDR EG shall have the right to recompense the reliefs/sacrifices/waivers extended by

respective CDR lenders as per the COR guidelines. The recompense payable is contingent on various factors including
improved performance of the Company and many other conditions, the outcome of which is currently materially
uncertain. Tentative recompense amount comes to Rs. 6,883.00 Lakhs.

However, the credit facilities envisaged and sanctioned under CDR package were not released fully by the. CDR
lenders to the Company, which resulted in sub-optimum utilization of manufacturing facilities, Due to non-
! . __disbursement of funds the Company could not complete one of its spinning projects where substantial amount was
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~ company is facing cash flow mismatch and is not able to serve debt obligations as per the terms of CDR package
sanctioned earlier, However, despite all this, the manufacturing capacities are operational and running. The
Company has not defaulted in any of its statutory dues and has been able to retain all its management functionaries.

Since, the Company was finding it difficult to serve its debt obligations, the Company has requested its lenders for a
second/deep restructuring of its debts. Considering the state of art manufacturing facilities of the Company, most
modernized technology, skilled labour force, professional management and inherent viability of the Company, the
! lenders have in-principle agreed for second/deep restructuring of the debts. The Company and the lenders have
already initiated the steps in this direction and the Company believes that the implementation of an appropriate
restructuring scheme, its position shall improve significantly. Keeping in view the above, the financial statements of
the company are prepared on going concern basis.

37. The lenders have stopped charging interest on borrowings, since the accounts from the Company have been
categorized as Non Performing Asset. The Company has stopped providing interest accrued and unpaid effective 1 April
2016 in its books. The amount of such accrued and unpaid interest, calculated according to the CDR term, not provided
for is estimated at Rs. 22,658.75 lakhs {Previous year Rs. 21,659.39 lakhs) for the year ended 31" March 2015. Due to
non-provision of the interest expense, net loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019 is reduced by Rs. 22,658.75 lakhs.
Further the financial liability is reduced by Rs. 60,201.47 lakhs and correspondingly the equity is increased by the same
amount. . ’

38. Exceptional Items for the year includes:

a. During the year the Company has made an allowance of Rs. 6,996.24 lakhs for trade receivables under expected
| credit losses in compliance of Ind AS 109 which is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item.
Though the company strongly believes that these trade receivables are fully recoverable.

i . h. The Company had given capital and trade advances to the suppliers that were outstanding for a long time. In view of
reduction in activities, the materials and services could not be called from such suppliers. In compliance of Ind AS36,
during the previous year impairment for capital and trade advances amounting to Rs. 8,742.47 lakhs which was
; charged to Statement of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item. During the year capital and trade advances amounting
3 to Rs. 12.62 lakhs, net of amount adjusted and provision made, had been adjusted and credited to Statement of
' Profit & Loss as an exceptional item. Though the company strongly believes that these balance outstanding
advances amounting to Rs. 8,729.85 lakhs are fully recoverable/adjustable,

39. Lease Rent
| i. Factory Building is taken on lease for 15 years with the option of renewal. The particulars of these leases are as

| follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 2018-19 | 2017-18
Future Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
Not later than one year 11.37 7.00
Later than one year and not later than five years 32.86 23.50
Later than five years 1.54 2,50
Lease payment recognized in Profit and Loss Account 11.37 4.00

il. Rent Income also includes Lease Rental received towards Factory Building. Such operating leases are generally for a
period of 5 years and may be renewed for a further period based on mutual agreement of the parties. The

particulars of these leases are as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 | 2017-18
Future Minimum lease payments on non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than one year 1.48 -
Later than one year and not later than five years - -
3; Later than five years -
: Lease income recognized in Profit and Loss Account - 8.45 1.59

RO YU
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40. Capital Work in Progress includes, Project and Pre-operative Expenses pending allocation to fixed assets:
2018-19 2017-18

Opening Balance 8,407.28 | 8,407.28
Add: Expenses incurred during the year

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations & Other Expenses

Sub Total . 8,407.28 | 8,407.28
Less: Expenses capitalized during the year

Closing Balance 8,407.28 8,407.28

41. The summarized position of Post-Employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the Profit &
Loss Account and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS 19) are as under:
a. Gratuity
The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the Company's
financial statements as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018;

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i) Change in benefit obligations
Present value of obligations at the beginning 115.44 197.66
Current Service cost T 44.32 35.95
Interest expense 8.95 15.81
Remeasurements-Actuarial {gains)/ losses 9.21 : (116.63)
Benefits paid , - {17.35)
Present value of obligations as at the end 177.92 115.44

(i} Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 55.20 -46.66
Return on plan assets 4.28 4.09
Remeasurements-Actuarial (gains)/ losses (0.24) (0.01)
Contributions 1.50 . -21.81
Benefits paid - (17.35)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 60.74 55.20
Funded status (117.18) (60.23)

(ili) Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Amount for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under employee benefit expenses.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current Service cost 44.32 35.95
Interest cost 8.95 15.81
Return on plan assets {4.28) {4.09)
Net gratuity cost 48.99 47.67

.. {iv)Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Amount for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 recognized in statement of other comprehenswe

income:
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Actuarial {gains) / losses 9.45 (116.63}

{v) Actuarial assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2019 and March 31,
20138 are set out below:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2013
Discount rate , 7.75% _ 8.00%
Salary Growth Rate (per annum) 5.00% 7.00%
Mortality indian Assured Lives Mortality {2006-08)

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 5.00% 7.00%
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" The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Insurer managed funds ) ... .. .|100% 100%
Sensitivity Analysis
{in lakhs)
. 31-03-2019
Particulars
Decrease | Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 195.31 163.06
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) - 10% 8%

162.56 195.62 .

Salary growth Rate (-/+1%) 9% 10%
0

{% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

174.83 180.41

Mortality Rate {-/+10%) 2% 1%
(]

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
b. Provident Fund
During the year the company has recognized an expense of Rs. 186.36 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 137.64 Lakhs)
towards provident fund scheme.

c¢. Leave Encashment
During the year the company has recognized an expense of Rs. 19.90 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 83.88 Lakhs).

42, Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss

PARTICULARS I CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Current tax:

Current income tax charge - -

Total {A) - -
Deferred tax:

In respect of current year - 15,845.63
Total (B) . - 15,845.63
MAT Credit Entitlement:

In respect of current year - 920.99
Total {C} - 920.99
Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss )

{A+B+C) (16,766.62)

The company has assessed that sufficient taxable profits would not be available in near future. As a result, deferred tax
asset in respect of unused tax losses amounting to Rs. 17,653.44 lakhs as of 2019, have not been recognized by the
-Company. : . S

43. Revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is as follows:

{In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from sale of products 3,662.38 25,251.52
Revenue from job work 11,190.01 6,298.28

Total Revenue from Operations 14,852.39 31,549.80
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for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 by type of goods and services,

'Disaggrega'te Revehﬁe lﬁformétion: The table below presénts diééggregatéd revenues from contracts with customers

! {In takhs}
| Particulars March31,2019  March31, 2018
Terry Towels 22.80 496.07
Yarn 970.87 18,673.96
Knitted Cloth 1,006.25 828.59
Others 1,662.45 5,252.90
Job Work 11,150.01 6,298.28
Total 14,852.39 31,549.80
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Performance obligations and remaining performance cbligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be

; recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these.

that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

i
i
i
i
]
i
i
|
|

44, Financial Instruments by Category

amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the
remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is
on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by
several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue

# including allowance for doubtful debts amounting Rs. 27854.52 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 20,858.28Lakhs).

{Rs. in [akhs)
: Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost
5 Particulars On On On On On On On On
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 {| 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
! FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non Current Assets
j investments in
: - Equity Instruments 4041.00 4041.00 - - - - - -
- Others 4062.22 4062.22 - - - - - -
Current Assets
Trade Receivables - - - - - - | 29493.18" | 28449.59"
Other Financial Assets - - - - - - 6331.28 6331.28
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - - - - - 33.25 105.50
! Bank Balances other than
above ) ) j ) ) ) ) )
: TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 8103.22 8103.22 - - - - 35857.71 34886.77
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - 61437.62 77361.87
Current Liabilities .
Borrowings - - - - - - 36195.01 36708.28
. Trade Payables - - - - - - 12156.55 12537.72
: Other Financial Liabilities - - - - - - 68267.73 53205.22
: TOTAL FINANCIAL
1 LIABILITIES - - - - - - | 1780s691 | 17990309

value as at 31st March 2019 & as at 31st March 2018

{Rs.in Lakhs)

45, Fair Value Measurement: The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabiities measured at fair

Particulars Fair Value Measurement using

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3

} 31,03.2019 31.03.2018

31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018

L oy e

31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018

e B B e
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Investment E‘ropertmy - E - - ) . 978.98
Liabilities
Borrowings . - - 163168.75 164137.89 - -

46. Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and other
current liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The
Company has loans and receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly
from its operations. The management of the company set out the company’s overall business strategies and its risk
management policy. The Company’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company. The company policies include financial risk management policies
covering specific areas, such as market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk).
Periodic reviews are undertaken to ensure that the company’s policy guidelines are complied with.

There has been no change to the company’s exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk. The company is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments. The company has not
framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are monitored by management on a continuous basis. The
company does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, investment in securities, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative or risk management purposes.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans & borrowings and
deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

i) The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on
the net interest income for one year, based on the average rate of borrowings held during the year ended 31 March
2018, all other variables being held constant. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions.

Foreign Currency risk management: The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

Liquidity risk management: The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents that are
generated from operations. The Company is passing through a phase of liquidity stress and there is a mismatch in cash
flows. Due to this, the capacities of the Company are running at sub-optimal level. The Company has overdue bank
borrowings and is in advanced stage of negotiations with the banks for restructuring of its debt which would correct the
cash flow mismatch. The Company believes that post restructuring, the Company would be able to generate enough
cash Inflows to meet its working capital reguirements in the medium and fong run.

~The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and actual

cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk Management: Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the
company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

" Also, a significant change in estimation assumptions was made during the reporting period as the period over which

~ Yarns. The Company has entered into short-term agreements with companies incorporated in overseas to sell the

expected credit losses were estimated in previous year was three years from due date which has now been revised to
one year from invoice date. '

The Company has exposure to credit risk from trade receivable balances on sale of Readymade Garments, Towel and
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Garments, Towel and Yarns to these customers and the potential risk of default is considered fow. For other customets,
the Company ensures concentration of credit does not significantly Impair the financial assets since the customers to
whom the exposure of credit is taken are well established and reputed industries engaged in their respective field of
business. The creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit in the normal course of the business is
monitored regularly.

Capital risk management: The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
j maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The director’s policy is to maintain a strong capital
: : - base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March 2019 and 31st March
2018.

47. Segment Information ‘

! Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues: In accordance with Ind AS 108
? “Operating Segments”, the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company reported that the company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing textile products i.e. a single business and all business activities revolve
around this segment. ’

i Geographical information: The Company operates in two principal geographical areas -'India and outside India
The Company’s revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information
about its non-current assets* by location of assets are detailed below.

Particulars Revenue from Customers Non-Current Assets*

31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
India 14,852.39 22,065.26 103,192.93 ' 106,758.40
Outside India - 9,484.54 - -
Total 14,852.39 31,549.80 103,192.93 106,758.40

*Non-current assets exclude those relating to financial assets and deferred tax assets.

information about major customers: A single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue during the
financial year 2018-19.

48. Previous year amounts have been reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable and conform to Ind AS

presentation.

49, Note No. 1-48 forms integral part of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subject to our Separate
Report of Even Date

& Associates
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of SEL Textiles Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SEL Textiles Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred as “the Standalone Financial Statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of our observations described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph below, the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements read with Paragraph Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern and paragraph
Emphasis of Matters described below give the information required by the. Companies Act,2013 {“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2019, the loss and total Comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows far the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10} of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stondalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and we have
fulfitled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Financial Staterments.

We refer to:

{1) Note No. 37, to the Standalone financial statements in respect of non provision of interest on borrowings from
banks {classified as NPA) amounting Rs 22658.75 Lokhs & Rs. 21659.39 lakhs (amount calculated after
considering the rates and terms and conditions stipulated originally as per CDR package) for the year ended
31 March, 2019 & 31° March, 2018 respectively. The same is not in compliance with the requirements of para
27 of the ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements w.r.t. preparation of financial statements on accrual
basis. Consequently, borrowings are not reflected at fair value in financial statements as required by Ind AS
108, Financial instruments. '

(2] Note no. 10 {Other Financial Assets} to the Standalone financial statements includes interest subsidy receivable
amounting to Rs. 6331.28 Lakhs which consists of interest subsidy under TUFS from banks for the financial years
2013-14 to 2016-17 for which no confirmation was available and further delay in its realization raises serious
doubt about its recovery. However, the company has not provided for any allowance there against.

g impairment testing conducted to
g ’- outstanding as at 31st March,

:%)- vision in respect of impairment
)
*

{3} The company has not provided to us for our review any worki

2019. We are unable to comment on whether the compa
- losses on above as required under Ind AS 36.




(4} Note no. 15, 17 and 19 of the Standalone financial statements in respect of Borrowings and other financial
liabilities respectively contains secured loans from banks and current maturities thereof. There is shortfall in the
carrying value of the security against the secured loans consequently the loans are not fully secured.

We further report that, had the impact of our observations made in para above been considered, the net loss for the
year ended 31" March, 2019 would have been increased by Rs. 22658.75 lakhs and the borrowings for the year
ended 31" March, 2019 and 31° March, 2018 would have been increased by Rs. 60202 lakhs & Rs. 37543 lakhs and
Equity would have been reduced by the same amount for the years ended 31 March, 2019 and 31" March, 2018
respectively.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Note no. 36 of the Standalone financial results, stating that the terms and condmons of the sanctioned CDR
package w.r.t. interest and principal repayment were not complied with. Consequently, the bank accounts of the
company become non performing. The company has incurred net loss of Rs. 12809 lakhs resulting inte accumulated
losses of Rs. 108281 lakhs leading to erosion of entire net worth and current liabilities have exceeded the current
assets of the company, Further concerning the company’s ability to realize the value of inventories, trade
receivables and other financial assets, meet its contractual/ financial obligations w.r.t. repayment of overdue
principal and accrued interest on secured borrowings, arranging working capital for ensuring normal operations,
further investments required towards ongoing projects under construction. Due to financial constraints, the
company has started job work operations in major spinning plants instead of pursuing its own manufacturing
activities since November 2017 and major source of operating income during the year under consideration is from
job work. This condition indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as going concern and therefore the company may be unable to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. '

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

(1) Note no.36(c} of the Standalone financial statements in respect of Contingency related to ‘compensation
payable in lieu of bank sacrifice,” the outcome of which is materially uncertain and cannot be determined
currently. )

(2) Note no. 31 A [ii} of the Standalone financial statements in respect of contingency related to export
incentives obligation refundable amounting Rs. 1066 lakhs in respect of Allowance for foreign trade
receivables, which is further subject to interest and penalties, the amount of such obligation cannot be
determined currently.

(3) Note no. 34, to the Standalone financial statements regarding the balance confirmations of Trade
Receivables, Capital/Trade Advances & Trade Payables. During the course of preparation of Standalone
financial statements, e-mails/letters have been sent to various parties by the company with a request to
confirm their balances as on 31st March, 2019 out of which few parties have confirmed their balances
direct to us or to the company.

{4) As reported vide note 38(a) to the Standalone financial statements, the company has provided for
allowance of Rs.6996 lakhs in respect of Trade Receivables under Expected credit losses {under ECL
Model) as reported in para 3 to the financial statements. Further, Note No. 38(b) to the Standalone
financial statements, the éompany has provided for impairment loss of Rs. 8729 Lakhs in respect of long
outstanding Capital/Trade Advances given to suppliers.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report herein after
called the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. The Board’s report including Annexure to Board's Report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the Board report including Annexure 1o Board’s
Report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

SFRUNTENSMEdge obtained
FRN: 015848N

M.No.:084604 /

Board’s Report is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial state
during the course of our audit or ptherwise appears to be materially misstated.



If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact.

* When we read the Board report including Annexure to Board’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe
actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matter stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive loss ,changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind As and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materfal misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3}{i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a geing concern. If we conclude that a material

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditpr’s

A
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. ACCOUNTANTS
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act based on our audit, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. In our opinion, the matters described in the “Basis of Qualified Opinion” and “Emphasis of Matter”
paragraphs above may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the Company.

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:




ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the company on the Standalone
financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2019. We report that:

(i)

(i)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets except for certain items of fixed assets, the guantitative details of which are in the
process of being compiled. As explained to us, the same will be compiled by the management in due course of
time.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. As explained to us, in accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinian, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c} According to the information and explanation given to us and on the hasis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the physical verification of
inventories has been conducted at reasonable interval by the management and no material discrepancies was
noticed on physical verification of inventories carried out by the management as compared to the book
records.

(iii) in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any

(iv)

(v)

{vi)

{vii)

loans secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms and other parties covered in the register maintained section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. No order under
the aforesaid sections has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of Cost records sub-section (1) of the section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and are of opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and mainfained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the such records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{(a)According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us, we
state that the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, provident
fund, employees state insurance, custom duty, Goods & services Tax, , cess and other statutory dues except
The Punjab State Development Tax to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, provident fund,
employees state insurance, custom duty, Goods & services tax, cess and other material statutory dues except
The Punjab State Development Tax amounting Rs. 20240/-in arrears, as at 31st March, 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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{b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of income tax, Provident fund,

{wiii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi}

{xii)

(i)

employees state insurance, custom duty, Goods & services tax, The Punjab State Development Tax and other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except disclosed as under:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount | Accounting year to | Forum where the
{In Lakhs} | which the amount | dispute is pending
relates '
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 590.63 2013-14,2014-15 ITAT (Chandigarh)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 111.78 2011-12 CIT {Appeals)
Ludhiana

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the company has defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings and interest thereon to banks as given below:

Bank Name Nature of Amount Amount Overdue Since

Allahabad Bank Interest 3,33,22,75,582 31.08.2015
' - Principle 96,48,58,883 30.09.2015
Bank of Maharashtra Interest 47,03,80,784 31.10.2015
Principle 32,79,95,319 30.09.2015

Central Bank Of India _ Interest 3,05,29,80,448 30.11.2015
Principle 92,08,84,138 31.10.2015

Corporation Bank interest 54,03,74,081 30.01.2016
Principle 33,28,37,900 31.01.2016

Indian Overseas Bank " Interest 92,55,28,444 31.10.2015
Principle 32,42,06,674 31.10.2015

Punjab National Bank Interest 1,01,11,16,366 30.04.2016
Principle 50,38,35,430 30.01.2016

Punjab & Sind Bank Interest 31,31,65,410 28.02.2016
Principle 15,00,97,344 30.01.2016

UCO Bank ] ' Interest 53,18,56,100 31.08.2015
Principle 30,13,86,014 31.10.2015

united bank interest 11,77,89,211 31.10.2015
Principle 11,05,83,579 30.09.2015

Union Bank of India 7 Interest 24,28,59,309 30.04.2015
Principle 22,27,50,168 31.03.2015

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, no money was raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud on or by the Company, by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the audit procedures conducted by us,
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided was in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Companies {Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
company, all fransactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where appllcable and the details of the transaction been disclosed in the standalone financial




{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, are not
applicable to the Company.

{xv}  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with the directors and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 {xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Crder,
2016, are not applicable to the Company, '

{xvi}  In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

FOR MANIK MALHOTRA & ASSOCI
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph {g) under “Report on other legal and regulatory requiremenis” section of our report to
the members of SEL Textiles Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of SEL Textiles Limited (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and mainteriance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013. -

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal financial controls over
financial reporting includes those paolicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail ,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial controls over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changeés in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pracedures may
detericrate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over Financial reporting with regard to the company were not made
available to us to enable us to determine if the company has established adequate internal financial control over
financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls operating effectively as on March 31, 2015.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit of Standalone
Financial Statements, in respect of the matters disclosed in paragraphs under “Basis of Qualified Opinion” and
“Emphasis of Matter” of our main Independent Auditor’s Report which came to our notice during the course of
audit of standalone financial statements indicates material weaknesses in the internal financial controls over
financial reporting as at March 31, 2019.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or
interim financial statements wil! not be prevented or detected on timely basis.

Qualified Opinion
in our opinion, the matters disclosed in above paragraphs under “Basis of Qualified Opinion” indicate material
weaknesses in the internal financial controls over financial reporting.

We have considered the disclaimer of opinion as well as material weaknesses identified and reported in Qualified
Opinion paragraph in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, and the disclaimer and material weaknesses do not
affect our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

PLACE: LUDHIANA (CA. MANIK MA
DATED: 22.05.2019 . PROPRIETOR
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SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2019

- {Rs.in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

NOTE NO.

AS AT
31.03.2019

AS AT
31.03.2018

ASSETS
{1) Non Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment
{b) Capital Work in Progress
{c) Investment Property
{d) Goodwill
{e) Other Intangible Assets
{f) Intangible Assets under Development
(g) Biclogical Assets Other Than Bearer Plants
{h) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade Receivable
{iti} Loans
{iv) Others
{i} Deferred Tax Assets {Net)
{i) Other Non-Current Assets

(2) Current Assets
{a} Inventories
{b) Financial Assets
{i) Current Investments
{ii} Trade Receivables
{iii} Cash & Cash Equivalents
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above
(v]) Loans
{vi} Others
(€) Current Tax Assets {Net)
(d) Other Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

{a) Equity Share Capital
(b} Other Equity

LIABILITIES
{1} Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings
(ii} Trade Payables .
{iii} Other Financial Liabilites
{b) Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net} .
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities

{2) Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings
(il) Trade Payables
{1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
{2} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small ente
{iti) Other Financial Liahilities
{b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions
{d) Current Tax Liabilities(Net}

TOTAL EQUITY & UIABILITIES

10
11

rprises

12

0.25
1,365.65

1834

2,371.11

0.34
1,302.87

18.34

2,423.25

413.91
3,647.11

10.69

413.91
3,647.22

10.55

4,071.71

4,071.67

See accompanying notes to the financlal statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

for Dinesh Mehtani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

25897N
&
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ACCOUNTANTS
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Place; Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors

of Silverline Corporation Limited

{Neeraj $dluja)

Director

.t
M~
vneet Gupta)

Director
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| . SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED
]
§ . STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019
f (Rs. in Lakhs)
' PARTICULARS NOTE NO. CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
| |. Revenue From Operations - -
5 (1. Other Income 13 1.97 2.00
ill. Total Income (I+11) 1.97 2.00
IV. Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed - -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade - -
Employee Benefits Expense 14 0.76 1.00
Finance Cost 15 0.24 0.02
i Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16 0.10 0.10
i Other Expense 17 1.01 0.25
Total Expenses (IV) 211 1.36
V. Profit/{Loss) Before Exceptional Items And Tax (I-1V} . (0.14) 0.63
Vi. Exceptional Items -
Vi, Profit/(l.oss) Before Tax (V-V1) {0.14) 0.63
VI, Tax Expense
1) Current Tax - 0.20
2) Deferred Tax - 0.10
i 3) Earlier Years {0.03) -
IX. Profit/{Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations (VII-Vii) {0.11) 0.33
X. Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations - -
X1, Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
Xl Profit/{Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (After Tax) (X-X1) - -
XIIL Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX+X11) {0.11) 0.33
XV, Other Comprehensive Income
A (i} Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
{ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not ke reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
B {i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - {0.01)
{ii) Income Tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
XV. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (XIIl+XIV) (0.11) 0.32
‘ XVI. Earning per Equity Share {for Continuing Operations) {Rs.) 19
i 1} Basic (0.003) 0.01
2) Diluted {0.003) 0.01
: XVII. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued Operations) {Rs.)
: 1) Basic . - -
i 2) Diluted . - -
! XVIII. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued & Continuing Operations) (Rs.) 19
1) Basic {0.003) 0.01
2} Diluted {0.003) 0.01
i‘ See accompanying notes to the financial statements
‘ This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date. For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
for DInesh Mehtani & Co. of Silverline Corperation Limited
Chartered Accountants .
Reg. No.: 025897N -
{CA D esh Kumar) {Neeraj&dluja) -{'i:avneet Gupta)
Prop. Director Director
M.No.: 091676 DIN: 00871939 DIN: 02122420

Place; Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019
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SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Details Current Year Details Previous Year
{Rs.} {Rs.) {Rs.) [Rs.)
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Taxes & Extraordinary Items {0.14) 0.63
Adjustments for Non Cash ltems:
Depreciation 0.10 0.10
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:
Decreasef{Increase) in Other Current Assets {28.27) 0.35
Decrease/f(Increase) in Current Tax Assets (0.20) -
Decrease/f{Increase) in Inventories 52.14 (12.14}
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities 0.14 23.81 10.35 {1.44)
Cash Generation from Operations 23.77 (0.72)
Taxes Paid {0.03) 0.20
Net Cash from Operating Activities 23.80 {0.92)
B Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Increase/{Decrease) in Property Plant and
Equipments and Capital Work in Progress __ {6278 (1.18)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities {62.78) {1.18)
C Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (38.97) {2.10)
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 44.58 46.68
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 5.60 44,58

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our
report of even date.
for Dinesh Mehtani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Reg. No.: 025897N
7y

CHARTERED
AGCOUNTANTS
3.0, 054676

{cA esh Kumar)
Prop.
M.No.: 091676

-Place: Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors

of Silverline Corporation Limited

(Neeraj Safuja)
Director
DIN: Q0871935
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Director
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NOTE NO.- 4
Particulars Plant & Fquipments Total
-Gross Value as-at-1st April; 2017 -- - - |- - 215 e v - B SR
Addition during the year - -
Deduction during the year - -
Gross Value as at 31st March, 2018 2,15 215
Addition during the year - -
Deduction during the year - -
Gross Value as at 31st March, 2019 2.15 2,15
Depreciation & Impairment
Depreciation as at 1st April, 2017 171 171
Depreciation for the year 0.10 0.10
Disposal during the year - -
Depreciation as at 31st March, 2018 1.81 1.81
Depreciation for the year 0.10 0.10
Disposal during the year -
Depreciation as at 31st March, 2019 1.90 1.90
Net Book Value
As at 31st March, 2019 0.25 0.25
As at 31st March, 2018 0.34 0.34
FINANCIAL ASSETS-OTHERS NOTE NO.-5
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
In Rupees In Rupees
a) Fixed Deposits 18.29 18.29
b) Others 0.05 0.05
TOTAL 18.34 18.34
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS NOTE NO.- 6
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
In Rupees in Rupees
{Unsecured considered good)
Capital Advances 2,371.11 2,423.25
TOTAL 2,371.11 2,423.25
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS NOYE NO. -7
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cash in Hand 4.97 43.77
Balances with Scheduled Banks 0.63 0.81
TOTAL 5.60 44.58
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) NOTE NO. - 8
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Prepaid Taxes 0.20 -
TOTAL 0.20 -
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS NOTENO. -9
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(Unsecured, considered good}
Advances to Suppliers 7.88 6.12
Others 302.67 276.17
TOTAL © 310.56 282.29




EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL NOTE NO. - 10
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
- - - — - - --31.03.2019 - | - -31.03.2018 -
(a) Authorised
10,000,000 Equity Shares 1,000.00 1,000.00
(b} I1ssued,Subscribed & Paid up
4,139,050 Equity Shares fully paid up. 413.91 413.91
413.91 413.91
{c) Par Value per Share is Rs. 10/-
{d} Reconclliation of the number of equity shares cutstandin
As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,39,050 413.91 41,39,050 413.91
Add: Addition during the year - - - .
41,39,050 413,91 41,39,050 413.91
Less: Deduction during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,38,050 413.91 41,389,050 413.91
{2} Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
il SEL Textiles Ltd. (Holding Company} 97.63%
OTHER EQUITY NOTE NO. - 11
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(a) Securities Premium
Opening Balance 3,636.90 3,636.90
Add: Addition during the year - -
3,636.90 3,636.90
Less: Deduction during the year - -
3,636.90 3,636.90
{b) Surplus
Opening Balance 10.32 9.99
Add: Addition during the year - 0.33
10.32 10.32
Less: Deduction during the year 0.11 -
10.21 10.32
{b} Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance - {0.01}
Add: Addition during the year - - '
: - {0.01)
Less: Deduction during the year - {0.01)
TOTAL 3,647.11 3,647.22
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES NOTE NO. - 12
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.201% 31.03.2018
(i} Payable to Vendors-Non Trade 10.64 -
{ii) Others 0.05 10.55
TOTAL 10.69 10.55
OTHER INCOME NOTE NO.-13
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
interast 197 2.00
TOTAL 1.97 200
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE NOTE NO.-14
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Salaries & Other Allowances 0.76 1.00
TOTAL 0.76 1.00
/ HTA&{; |
FINANCIAL EXPENSES /,,T\\ NOTE NO. - 15
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DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES NOTE NO. - 16
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIQUS YEAR
e *Depreciation'ofTangible'Assets B e e QA0 - - - -030 |-

TOTAL 0.10 0.10
OTHER EXPENSES NOTE NO. - 17
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Fees & Taxes 0.06 0.0t
Office Expenses 0.87 -
Legal & Professional Charges 0.03 0.19
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fee 0.05 0.05

TOTAL 101 (.25

f)| CHARTERED
ACGOUNTANTS




SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED 2018-13

2.

. Corporate Information

Silverline Corporation Limited is a public company incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companles
Act, 1956, Company in engaged in the business of textile sector and has not started its manufacturing operations
as on March 31, 2019. The registered office of the company is located at 274, G.T.Road, Dhandari Khurd,
Ludhiana, Punjab.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act') (to the extent notified. The ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except otherwise indicated.

2.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,

. judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting

policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from
period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue
and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method.
The effect of initially applying this standard is recognized at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The
standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application
and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — i.e. the comparative
information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer note 2{3) - Significant accounting
policies — Revenue recognition in the Annual report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, for the
revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial
statements of the Company is insignificant. :

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those praducts or services. it
also includes price variations based on the contractual agreements and excludes goods & services tax. Revenue
from export sales are recognized on shipment basis. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interest income

Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.

2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment & Capital Work in Progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumuiated mealrme / 0 ] . Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property,
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: SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED o018

for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met. The assets" residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off during the
year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. The company
depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet dateis
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date
are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment
is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company
; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit or
net loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying
value or the fair value less cost to sell.

2.5 Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance
incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the
employee renders related service.

2.6 Accounting for Taxes on Income
j Current Tax: Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
period after considering tax allowances & exemptions.

t Deferred Tax: Deferred tax assets and liahilities arising on account of timing difference and which are
i capable of reversal in subsequent periods, are recognized using the tax rates and tax faws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and
carried forward only if there is a virtual certainty that they will be realized and are reviewed for the
appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each Balance Sheet date.

: 2,7 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and
impairment is recognized, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by
discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When
there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer
exists or may have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

i
]
i
i
I
1
1
;
§

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position include cash in hand and at bank and short-
term deposits with original maturity period of three months or less.

2.9 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
Contingent Liabilities
(8) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be determined by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if:

; {iy The company has a present obligation as a resulit of a past event;
(i} A probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle the obligation;
and

CH
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SILVERLINE CORPORATIEN LIMITED 2018-13

{i)y @a present obligation arising from a past event when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
(i) a possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote.
Contingent Assets
Where an inflow if economic benefit is probable, an entity shall disciose a brief description of the nature of
the contingent assets at the end of reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their of effect,
measured using the principles set out as per provisions.

2.10 Earnings per share:
Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit from the continuing operations attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earning per share is computed by taking into account the aggregate of the weighted average numbers of
equity shares outstanding during the period. :

2.11 Financial instruments:

(i) Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement
Alt financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as
financial assets measured at amortized cost.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
- Financial assets at fair value
- Financial assets at amortized cost
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement
of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e.
fair value through other comprehensive income}.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write
down for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value
option.

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect
the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its
fair value changes).

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair
value option.

- Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amertized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as
an “‘accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recagnizing
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All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes.recognized in the
statemnent of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present
vzlue changes in "other comprehensive income".

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to
measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition: A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial
position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through"
arrangement and either;

{a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered intoc a pass-
through arrangement. It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

(i) Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payabies, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Tha Company’s financia! liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and redeemable preference shares.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange

or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
: e respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

ARTERED: |
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2.12 Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS)-7
“Statement of Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating activities.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company in the financial statements are as set out above.
The application of a number of these policies requires the Company to use a variety of estimation
technigues and apply judgement to best reflect the substance of underlying transactions.

The Company has determined that a number of its accounting policies can be considered significant, in
terms of the management judgement that has been required to determine the various assumptions
underpinning their application in the financial statements presented which, under different conditions,
could lead to material differences in these statements. The actual results may differ from the judgements,
estimates and assumptions made by the management and will seldom equal the estimated results.

Judgements

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company
that have the most significant effect on the financiat statements.

Deferred Tax Assets: The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax
assets can be utilized is based on the Company’s forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses, and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in India in
which the Company operates are also carefully taken into consideration. if a positive forecast of taxable
income indicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset, especially when it can be utifized without a time
limit, that deferred tax asset is usually recognized in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets that are
subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on
the specific facts and circumstances.

i
|
H
i
1
]
|
|
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Estimates and assumptions

i

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates
the wuncollectability of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a
customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required. Similarly, the Company provides for
inventory obsolescence and inventories with carrying values in excess of net realizable value based on
assessment of the future demand, market conditions and specific inventory management initiatives. If
market conditions and actual demands are less favorable than the Company's estimates, additional

inventory provisions may be required. In all cases inventory is carried at the lower of historical cost and net
realizable value.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

i) Recoverability of deferred tax assets: The recognition of deferred tax assets requires assessment of
future taxable profit. '

ii) Estimation of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities: while preparing the financial
statements the wmakes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of financial
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'18. The refated party disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {ind AS)-24 “Refated Party”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below:

Sr. No. Name of the related party Relationship

1 M/s. SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd. Ultimate Holding Company

2 M/s. SEL Textiles Limited Holding Company .

3 Mr. R.S. Saluja
Mr. Neeraj Saluja Key Management personnel
Mr. Dhiraj Saluja
Mr. Navneet Gupta
Mr. V.K.Goyal

4 M/s. Shiv Narayan Investments Pvt. Ltd. Enterprises over which key
M/s. Saluja International management  persocnnel  and
M/s. SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd. relatives of such personnel are
M/s. Rythm Textiles & Apparels Park Ltd. able to exercise significant
M/s. SE Exports influence

5 Mrs. Sneh Lata Saluja
Mrs. Ritu Saluja Relatives of KMP
Mrs. Reema Saluja

19. Earnings Per Share
The calculation of Earnings per Share as disclosed in the statement of Profit & Loss has been in accordance

with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS)-33 on “Earning per Share”. A statement on calculation of Basic &
Diluted EPS is as under:

Particulars Unit March 31, | March 31,
_ ' 2019 2018

Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 4,139,050 4,139,050
Profit/(Loss) for the year (continuing operations) Lakhs {(0.11) 0.33
Weighted average earnings per shares [basic and diluted) Rs. (0.01) 0.01
Profit/(Loss) for the year (Discontinued operations) Lakhs - -
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted} | Rs. - -
{Discontinued operations)

Profit/(Loss) for the year {total operations) Lakhs {0.11) 0.33
Weighted average earnings per shares {basic and diluted) Rs. (0.01) 0.01

20. In opinion of the board, all the current assets, loans & advances have the value on realization in the

21,

ordinary course of business at least equal to amount at which they are stated.

Financial Risk Management g
The management of the company set out the company’s overall business strategies and its risk management
policy. The Company’s overall financial risk management-program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company. The company policies include financial risk
management policies covering specific areas, such as market risk (including interest risk, liquidity risk and
credit risk). Periodic reviews are undertaken to ensure that the company’s policy guidelines are complied
with.

There has been no change to the company's exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk. The company is exposed to the following risks related to financial
instruments. The company has not framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are
monitored by management on a continuous basis. The company does not enter into or trade in financial
instruments, investment in securities, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative or risk
management purposs
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'a) Liquidity risk management: The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalentsand

b)

<)

22,

23.

the cash flow that is generated from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The
company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk Management: Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty wilt default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk has always been managed by the company
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of
customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.-On account of
adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the company, including cash and cash
equivalents, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Capital risk management: The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The director’s policy
Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business.

No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March 2019 and
31st March 2018.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, Company has no
Contingent liability to be provided for.

The figures of the previous year has been rearranged and/ or regrouped wherever considered necessary to
facilitate comparison.

FOR DINESH MEHTANI & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS SILVERLINE CORPORATION LIMITED

FRN.: 025897N

by X

(CAD {NEERAJ SALUIA) {NAVNEET GUPTA)
PROP. DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

M. No. 091676 DIN: 00871939 DIN: 02122420
PLACE: LUDHIANA

Date: 22.05.2019




Ref. N,

'} CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT | Phone: +31-161-2225785, Mobile: 98151-00355
E-mail: mehtanidinesh_1969@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Silverline Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Silverline Corporation Limited {“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31* March, 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, the statement.of
Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and its loss, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143{10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matter stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Cormpany or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

ey
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Office: Pindi Street, Ludhiana.
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‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements =

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
ncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
tonducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
tan arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are aiso
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related

-disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.




. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

a. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

¢. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules,
2014.

d. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2019, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March,
2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”,

f.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in
its financial statements;

2. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

, FRN ??25897N “’*‘::?\

7 ARTERED
{CADinesh Kumar)®\ cttiiinTs

Prop. HM.ND, 081678
M.No.: 091676
Place: Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019




____ Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Silverline Corporation Limited for the year ended
¢n 31st March, 2019. We report that: '

) {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed Assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

{c) The company has no immovable Property, Therefore the provision of the clause3 (i) {c) of the
Company (Audit Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the company.

{ii) The Company has no Inventories, Therefore the provision of the clause3 (i} of the Company (Audit
Report) Order 2016 are not applicable to the company.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has rigt
granted any loans secured or unsecured, to the parties covered in the register maintained section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) - In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its
business with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets and for sale of goods & services.
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major
weaknesses in internal controls.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. No arder
has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

(vi) In our opinion, since Company has no manufacturing activities, the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of Cost records under sub-section (1) of the section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(vii) (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, goods &
service tax and other material statutory dues. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were in arrears, as at
31* March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no disputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, goods & service tax and other material statutory dues in
arrears, as at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

{viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks or financial institutions.

{ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation,__,%iggg\kto us, there were no

moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public gffe :nc]{.fﬂigr} debt instruments)
O N .




x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given

. to us, no material fraud on or by the Company by its officers or employees during the year was
__noticed or reported, nor have we been informed of such case by the management. o

[xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided during the year under audit. Therefore the provisions of

clause 3 {xi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of
the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii} In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

[xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Companies
(Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

{xv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the
directors.

{xvi) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under Section 45-iAof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co,
Chartered Accountants

. Tl CHARTERED
(CA Dinesh Kumal}\ sccounrants

Prop.

M.No.: 091676
Place: Ludhiana

Dated: 22.05.2019




innexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Cioirﬁbénirérs -

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Silverline Corporation Limited
[“the Company”) as of 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date. '

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
tomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india {ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
pperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
tompany’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. '

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial contro! over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the




L. .. . Inherentlimitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting- -~ -~ o
) Secause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
; over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contraol over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
tompliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion )
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
hccountants of India.

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
M.NO. 091676

(CA Dinesh Kumar)
‘: Prop.

“ M.No.: 091676
Place: Ludhiana

Dated: 22.05.2019
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SEL AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
ASSETS
{1) Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 - 795.38

(b} Capital Work in Progress -
{c} Investment Property -
(d} Goodwill -
(e) Other Intangible Assets -
{7} Intangible Assets under Development -
{g) Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants -
{h) Financial Assets
{i) Investments
(i} Trade Receivable -
{iii) Loans
{iv) Others
(i} Deferred Tax Assets (Net) -
{j} Other Non-Current Assets

{2) Current Assets
{a) Inventories
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Current Investments -
(it} Trade Receivables -

{iii} Cash & Cash Equivalents 5 10.02 7.28
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above - -
{v) Loans - -
{vi) Others - -
I (¢) Current Tax Assets {Net) 6 5.37. 529
; (d) Other Current Assets 7 716.10 16.45
TOTAL ASSETS ) 731.49 824.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 8 409.00 409.00
(b) Other Equity ] 9 307.69 183.15
LIABILITIES

{1) Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(i) Trade Payables
(iii) Other Financial Liabilites -
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) -
{d} Other Non-Current Liabilities -

(2} Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings -

{ii} Trade Payables 10
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; - -
{2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - 1393
(iii} Other Financial Liabilities - -
{b) Other Current Liabilities 11 14.79 218.32

{c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities{Net) -

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 731.49 824.40
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in aur report of even date. For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
for Dinesh Mehtani & Co. e of SEL Aviation Private Limited
Chartered Accountants /‘;{@\" T4 N,«_
Reg. No,-BR5897N AN NG
o " -r . bod
9 =4 ATERED, ﬁg g
17 - G“’Eumh“]f’ ¥ . :
(CA Dittesh Kumar) O\ aee .cateie/ g (RS Saluja) (Neeraj:saluja)
Prop. N e Director ______________________Director

Place; Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019



SEL AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

NOTE NO. CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
I. Revenue From Operations 12 4,29 85.11
Il. Other Income 13 202.08 0.01
Kl Total income {[+11) 206.37 85.12
IV, Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed - -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade - -
Employee Benefits Expense 14 13.74 35.23
Finance Cost 15 0.71 0.02
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16 12.31 55.51
Other Expense 17 55.06 104.76
Total Expenses {1V} 81.83 195.53
V. Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items And Tax {I-1V) 124.55 {110.40)
VI. Exceptional Items - -
VIl Profitf{Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 124,55 {110.40)
Viil. Tax Expense
a} Deferred Tax - 504.5¢
IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations (Vv 124.55 {614.99)
X. Profit/(Loss} from Discontinued Operations -
Xl. Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
XN, Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations {After Tax) (X-X1) -
XK. Profit/(Los's) for the period {IX+XI) 124.55 (614.99)
XIV. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
(ii} Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
B {i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
{ii} Income Tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Lass - {255.75)
XV. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (XII14XIV) 124.55 {870.75)
XVI. Earning per Equity Share (for Continuing Operations) {Rs.) 19
1) Basic 3.05 (15.04)
2) Diluted 3.05 (15.04)
XVII. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued Operations} {Rs.)
1} Basic - -
2} Diluted - -
XVIIt. Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinued & Continuing Operations) (Rs.} 19
1) Basic 3.05 {15.04}
2) Diluted 3.05° {15.04)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date.
for Dinesh Mehtani & Co.

Chartered Accountants A
Reg, Ao.: 025897N o
% £
I’ P2\
{CA Dinesh Kumar)

Prop.
M.No.: 091676

Place: Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
of SEL Aviation Private Limited

{R § Saluja)
Director
DIN: 01145051

(Neeraj*sﬁuja)
Director
DIN: 00871939
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SEL AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019
{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before Taxes & Extraordinary ltems 124.55 (110.40)
Adjustments for Non Cash items:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 12.31 55.51
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 202.06 -

Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital:

Decrease/{Increase) in Other Current Assets (699.65) {1.58)

Decreasef{Increase) in Current Tax Assets {0.09) {(1.65)

(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables {13.93} . 293 )

{Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities {203.52) {917.19) 52.61 - 52.31

Cash Generation from Operations (982.39) {2.58)

Taxes Paid - -

Net Cash from Operating Activities (982.39) (2.58)
B Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 985.13 -

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 985.13 -

C Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -

Net Increase/(Decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalent 2.74 (2.58)
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 7.28 9.86
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 10.02 7.28

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our

report of even date.

for Dinesh Mehtani & Co. For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants U of SEL Aviation Private Limited
Reg. No.: 025897N

(CA Dindsh Kumar) s ) (RS Saluja) (Neera] Skfija)
Prop. 1.NO. OM G Director Director
M.No.: 091676 DIN: 01145051 DIN: 00871939

Place; Ludhiana
Dated: 22.05.2019




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE NO.- 4
Particulars Plant & Equipments Total
Gross Value asat 1st April, 2017 1,200.59 1,200.59
Addition during the year - -
Deduction during the year - -
Gross Value as at 31st March, 2018 1,200.59 1,200.59
Addition during the year - -
Deduction during the year 1,200.59 1,200.59
Gross Value as at 31st March, 2019 - -
Depreciation & Impairment
Depreciation as at 1st April, 2017 349,70 349.70
Depreciation for the year 55.51 55.51
Disposal during the year - -
Depreciation as at 31st March, 2018 405.21 405.21
Depreciation for the year 12.31 12.31
Disposal during the year 417.52 417.52
Depreciation as at 31st March, 2019 - -
Net Book Value
As at 31st March, 2019 - -
As at 31st March, 2018 795.38 795.38
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE NO.-5
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Cash in Hand 1.65 331
Balances with Scheduled Banks 836 297
Balances with Scheduled Banks {In Fixed Depaosits) - 1.00
TOTAL 10.02 7.28
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) NOTE NO. -6
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Prepaid Taxes 5.37 5.29
TOTAL 5.37 5.29
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS NOTE NO,-7
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advances to Suppliers 0.50 15.28
Statutory Dues & Taxes 5.60 0.91
Others 710.00 0.27
TOTAL 716.10 16.45

RCCOUNTATITS /)
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL NOTE NO.-8
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
. 31.03.2019._-._.| ... 31.03.2018
{a} Authorised
15,000,000 Equity Shares 1,500.00 1,500.00
(h) 1ssued,Subscribed & Paid up
4,090,000 Equity Shares fully paid up. 409.00 409.00
409.00 409.00
{c} Par Value per Share is Rs, 10/-
d) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding
As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2018
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 40,90,000 409.00 40,50,000 409,00
Add: Addition during the year - - - -
40,90,000 405.00 40,90,000 409.00
Less: Deduction during the year - - - -
Shares gutstanding at the end of the year 40,90,000 409.00 40,90,000 409.00
(e) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares ’
{i) SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (Holding Company) 97.54%
OTHER EQUITY NOTE NO. -9
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{2) Securities Premium
Opening Balance 1,037.54 1,037.54
Add: Addition during the year - -
1,037.54 1,037.54
Less: Deduction during the year - -
1,037.54 1,037.54
{b) Surplus
Opening Balance (854.40) {239.40)
Add: Addition during the year 124,55 {614.99)
{729.85) {854.40)
Less: Deduction during the year - -
{729.85) (854.40)
{c} Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance - {255.75)
Add: Addition during the year - 255.75
Less: Deduction during the year - -
TOTAL 307.69 183.15
TRADE PAYABLES NOTE NO. - 10
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Trade Payables - 13.93
TOTAL - 13.93
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES NOTE NO. - 11
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Statutory Dues & Taxes - 0.60
Employees Benefits - 4.88
Others 14,79 212.83
TOTAL 14,79 218.32
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

NOTE NO. - 12
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
- Air Fare 4.29 85.11
TOTAL 4.29 85.11
OTHER INCOME NOTE NO.-13
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Interast 0.02 0.01
Profit of Sale of Plant, Property & Equipments 202.06 -
TOTAL 202.08 0.01
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE NOTE NO. - 14
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Salaries & Other Allowances 13.74 34.80
Staff & Labour Welfare - 0.43
TOTAL 13.74 35.23
FINANCIAL EXPENSES NOTE NOQ. - 15
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Bank Charges 0.71 0.02
TOTAL 0,71 0.02
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES - NOTE NO. - 16
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Depreciation of Tangible Assets 12.31 55.51
TOTAL 12.31 55.51
OTHER EXPENSES NOTE NOQ. - 17
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Air Craft Maintanenace 53.24 94.79
Printing & Staticnery - 0.06
insurance 1.48 2.41
Fees & Taxes 0.11 4,51
Legal & Professional Charges - .74
Auditors' Remuneration
Audit Fee 0.10 0.10
Rent - 0.30
Travelling & Conveyance 0.13 0.86
TOTAL 55.06 104.76
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2,

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Corporate Information
SEL Aviation Private Limited {the Company) is a private limited company incorporated in India under the
provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India. The Company is engaged in the business of aviation sector.
The registered office of the company is located at 274, G.7.Road, Dhandari Khurd, Ludhiana, Punjab.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 {"Act'} {to the extent notified. The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees ("INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from
period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition .
Aircraft Income: Passenger Income is recognized on flown basis, i.e. when the services are rendered.

Interest income: Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. For
financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are
ready for use, as intended by the management. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of the asset after its use is Included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are
met.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in
Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added/ disposed off during the
year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. The company
depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Hraan N .
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measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit or net loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are gliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less
cost to sell.

2.6 Accounting for Taxes on Income

Current Tax

Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period after
| considering tax allowances & exemptions.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on account of timing difference and which are capable of reversal in
subsequent periods, are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward only if thereis a
| virtual certainty that they will be realized and are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each Balance Sheet date.

2,7 Impairment of Assets
The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If
any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is
| recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
! is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. When there is indication that an impairment loss
recognised for an asset in earfier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position include cash in hand and at bank.

2.9 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities

(a) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be determined by using a substantial degree of estimation,
if:
{i) The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
(i) A probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle the obligation; and

{iii) The amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated

(b) Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

(i} a present obligation arising from a past event when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
{ii) a possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent Assets

Where an inflow if economic benefit is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets at the-end of reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their of effect,
measured using the principles set out as per provisions.

2.10  Earnings per share
Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit from the continuing operations attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earning
per share is computed by taking into account the aggregate of the weighted average numbers of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

2.11  Alircraft Maintenance and Repair Costs
Aircraft Maintenance and Repair costs are expensed on incurrence as incurred.
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2,12  Leases
Assets acquired on leases wherein a significant portfon of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by

the lesser are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals paid for such leases are recognized as an expense on
systematic basis over the term of lease.

2.13 Financial instruments:

(i} Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial
assets measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement
i For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
- Financial assets at fair value ‘
‘ - Financial assets at amortized cost
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of

profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair
value through other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost {net of any write down
for impalrment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the

contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value
changes).

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value
option.

- Business model test; The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains
and losses on them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present
vaiue changes in “other comprehensive income",

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it

at fair value through other compr%@@}:fg@\me with only dividend income recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. N

A COUTANTS
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" Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicabie, a part of a financial asset or part of @ group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position)
when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through" arrangement
and either;

{a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement. It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In.that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained. -

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

(i} Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and redeemable preference shares.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial labilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Tiability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

. modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

2,14

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS}-7 “Statement of
Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating activities.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and Ilabilltles at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
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The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company in the financial statements are as set out above. The
application of a number of these policies requires the Company to use a variety of estimation techniques and apply
judgement to best reflect the substance of underlying transactions.

The Company has determined that a number of its accounting policies can be considered significant, in terms of
the management judgement that has been required to determine the various assumptions underpinning their
application in the financial statements presented which, under different conditions, could lead to material
differences in these statements. The actual results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions
made by the management and will seldom equal the estimated results.

Judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that
have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Assets: The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can
be utilized is based on the Company’s forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses,
and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in India in which the Company operates
i are also carefully taken into consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a
deferred tax asset, especially when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually
recognised in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or
uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Estimates and assumptions .

1 The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates the uncollectability of
accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-
worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional
allowances may be required. Similarly, the Company provides for inventory obsolescence and inventories with
carrying values in excess of net realizable value based on assessment of the future demand, market conditions and
specific inventory management initiatives. If market conditions and actual demands are less favorable than the
Company’s estimates, additional inventory provisions may be required. In all cases inventory is carried at the lower
of historical cost and net realizable value,

{ The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement of
| financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying amounts of
: assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

i) Recoverability of deferred tax assets: The recognition of deferred tax assets requires assessment of future taxable
prafit.

ii) Estimation of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities: while preparing the financial statements the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of financial assets and financial
liabilities

CHARTERED  J:
ACCOUNTANT 5
1. 14C. 091678
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"18. The related party disclosure in accordance with indian Accounting Standard (ind AS)-24 “Related Party” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below:

: Sr. No. | Name of Related Party Relationship

1 SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd. Holding Company

: 2 Mr. R. S. Saluja

Mr. Neeraj Saluja Key Management Personnel

Mr. Dhiraj Saluja

3 Mrs. Sneh Lata Saluja

Mrs. Ritu Saluja Relatives of Key Management Personnel

' Mrs. Reema Saluja

: 4 Shiv Narayan Investments Pvt, Ltd. Enterprises over which key management personnel and
Saluja International relatives of such personnel is able to exercise significant
j SE Exports influence

! SEL Textiles Ltd. _

| Rythm Textiles & Apparels Park Ltd.

‘ Silverline Corporation Ltd.

19. Earnings Per Share: The calculation of Earnings per Share as disclosed in the statement of Profit & Loss has
been in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS}-33 on “Earning per Share” issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of india.

A statement on calculation of Basic & Diluted EPS is as under:

; Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

1

1 Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 io

;. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 4,090,000 4,090,000

? Profit/(Loss) for the year {continuing operations) Lakhs {124.55) {614.99)
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) Rs. {3.05}) (15.04)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (Discontinued operations) Lakhs - -
Weighted average earnings per shares {basic and diluted) Rs. - -
Profit/{Loss) for the year (total operations) Lakhs {124.55}) (614.99)
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) Rs. {3.05) {15.04)

20. Financial Risk Management

The management of the company set out the company’s overall business strategies and its risk management
policy. The Company’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the company. The company policies include financial risk management policies
covering specific areas, such as market risk {including interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk). Periodic reviews
are undertaken to ensure that the company’s policy guidelines are complied with,

There has been no change to the company’s exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. The company is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments. The
company has not framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are monitored by management on
a continuous basis. The company does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, investment in securities,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative or risk management purposes.

a) Liquidity risk management: The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the
cash flow that is generated from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liguidity risk is

i perceived. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continugusly monitoring
5 forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Bfars to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual
fedcompany. Credit risk has always been managed by the company

o ailaring.  tha ettt c) 2300
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customers to which the company grants credit térms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption
of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment lass or gain. With respect
to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the company, including cash and cash equivalents, the
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amaount of these instruments.

c) Capital risk management: The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The director’s policy is
to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business.

Mo Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March 2019 and 31st
March 2018,

21. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current
year’s classification/presentation.

Subject to our Separate
Report of Even Date

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co. For and on the behalif of Board

Chartered Accountants
Reg.No.: 025897N
A‘W
(CA Dinesh Kumar) j (Neeraj Saluja)
Prop. Director Director
M. No. 091676 DiIN: 01145051 DIN: 00871939

Place: Ludhiana
Date : 22.05.2019




D'NESH MEHTANI & co_ Office: Pindi Street, Ludhiana.

e et e e S Resi: B-X1-1916, Od Civit Hospita! Road, Ludhiana.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT Phone: +91-161-2225785, Mobile: 98151-00355

E-mail: mehtanidinesh_1969@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of SEL Aviation Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

; Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SEL Aviation Private Limited (“the Company”), which
5 comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%* March, 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, the statement
of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the -
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and its loss, its changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the !nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
| financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
[ a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matter stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
. the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going COﬂCEf‘ﬁtﬁﬂﬁﬁ% the

../

cco\m P
nu‘D 02{678



e

related safeguards. @E’HM%
4K

~ going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to.

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are -
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the -
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

o
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' R'éport-bn Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the

Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

¢. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts} Rules, 2014.

d. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2019, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*

March, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position in its financial statements;

2. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education |
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 025897N

Place: Ludhiana (CA Di CHARTERED 1
ACCOUNTANTS /o
Date: 22.05.2019 Prop. WD, 091676
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of SEL Aviation Private Limited for the year
ended on 31st March, 2019. We report that:

: (i) The Company has no fixed assets. Therefore the provisions of clause 3 (i) of the Companies
; (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has no inventories.
Therefore the provisions of clause 3 (ii} of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, are
not applicable to the Company.

; (i} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans secured or unsecured, to the parties covered in the register maintained
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

! {iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
no loans, investments, guarantees and security. Therefore the provisions of clause 3 {iv) of the .
Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

{v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to
: 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. No
1 order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
r Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal. Therefore the provisions of clause 3
(v} of the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

| (vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company, no
manufacturing activities has been made during the year. We have broadly reviewed the
accounts and records of the Company in this connection and we are of opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(vii)(a} The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, goods
: & service tax and other material statutory dues. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were in arrears, as
at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no disputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, goods & service tax and other material statutory dues in
arrears, as at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. » )

{viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks or financial institutions. ‘

(ix} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments}
and term loans.

(x} To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company by its officers or employees during the
year was noticed or reported, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.




{xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided during the year under audit. Therefore the provisions
of clause 3 (xi) of the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016, are not applicable to the -
Company.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii)
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

: (xiii} In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and .
i 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
] financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Companles
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

{xv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the -
directors.

~ (xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to be registered under Section 45-1Aof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 025397N

Place: Lludhiana (CAD
Date: 22.05.2019 Prop.

M.No.: 091676
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Repart

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SEL Aviation Private Limited -
(“the Company”} as of 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {‘ICAY).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and-their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of .
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including
the accounting standards. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable. detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including the accounting

standards, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are einEh e only in accordance with
\
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authorizations of management and directors-of -the company;- and- (3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion .

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dinesh Mehtani & Co.
Chartered Accountants T
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FRN: 025897N WER LA
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Place: Ludhiana (CADinesh Kumar) o to1675
Date: 22.05.2019 Prop.
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